
             
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY,  OCTOBER 20, 2021, AT 5:30 P.M. 

61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA  92252 
 

 

ON MARCH 4, 2020, CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM DECLARED A STATE OF EMERGENCY IN 

CALIFORNIA AS A RESULT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC, FOR WHICH STATE AND SAN BERNARDINO 

COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH OFFICIALS HAVE CONTINUED TO RECOMMENDED MEASURES TO PROMOTE 

SOCIAL DISTANCING.  PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953, AND CORRESPONDING 

FINDINGS OF THE BOARD THAT CURRENTLY REMAIN IN EFFECT, THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC 

LOCATION FOR THIS MEETING AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND PUBLIC MAY 

ATTEND THIS MEETING BY TELEPHONE OR VIDEO CONFERENCE.  THE DISTRICT WILL OFFER ON A 

FIRST-COME, FIRST-SERVE BASIS FOR UP TO SIX (6) MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO ATTEND ITS MEETING 

IN PERSON.  INTERESTED PERSONS SHALL CONTACT BOARD SECRETARY BEVERLY KRUSHAT AT (760) 

974-0072 OR BKRUSHAT@JBWD.COM TO MAKE SUCH RESERVATION IF SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. 
 

This meeting will be streamed on Zoom at: 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89835151919?pwd=SGwvcVZKRUsrOUxRdFNPeEVXSXZnUT09 
 
 

or you may join by phone at 1-253-215-8782, Meeting ID: 898 3515 1919   Passcode: 276147 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. 

 

 

7. 

 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM (ROLLCALL) - 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA -  

STATE OF EMERGENCY FINDINGS – GOVT. CODE § 54953(e) – The Board shall, 
by majority vote, determine whether the conditions justifying the adoption of District 
Resolution No. 21-1035 on October 6, 2021, remain in effect, such that the Board will renew 
its findings in Resolution No. 21-1035 for an additional 30 days.  Such conditions include 
that (1) the State of Emergency declared by California Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020, 
relative to the COVID-19 Emergency, remains in effect; and (2) State or Local Health 
Officials continue to recommend or impose measures to promote social distancing in 
connection with such Emergency, and/or due to existing rate of community transmission and 
the small meeting space available to the District for in-person attendance, the provision of a 
unrestricted physical location for the District’s meetings would present imminent risks to the 
health and safety of attendees.   

PUBLIC COMMENT - This is the time set aside for public comment on any District-

related matter not appearing on the agenda. Government Code prohibits the Board from 

taking action on these items, but they may be referred to for future consideration. Please state 

your name and limit your comments to 3 minutes. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Matters on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in 

nature and will be enacted in a single motion without discussion. Any Board member or 

member of the public may request that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar and 

acted on separately: 

 

Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 1 of 24

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89835151919?pwd=SGwvcVZKRUsrOUxRdFNPeEVXSXZnUT09


Pages 4-16 

Pages 17-18 

Pages 19-20 
 

Pages 21-23 

 
 

 

Page 24 

 
 

 

8. 

 

9. 

 

10. 

11. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13. 

 

14. 

 

 

 

15. 

 

• August Check Register (reviewed by the Finance Committee on October 13, 2021) 

• Draft Minutes of October 6, 2021 

• District’s Salary Schedule (approved at the October 6, 2021 Board meeting). 
 

CA WATER AND WASTEWATER ARREARAGES PAYMENT PROGRAM – 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-1037- Anne Roman, Director of Finance– Recommend that the 

Board of Directors receive report, ask questions, and adopt Resolution No. 21-1037. 
 

CALIFORNIA VOTING RIGHTS ACT – Recommend that the Board of Directors receive 

a presentation, for information only, on District-based elections and the 2020 census. 

 

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT – Mark Ban, General Manager 
 

DIRECTOR MEETING REPORTS – 
 

• Kathleen Radnich, Public Information Consultant 

• Mojave Water Agency TAC Meeting – October 7, 2021 – Vice President Floen 

• Citizens Advisory Council – October 12, 2021 – Chairperson Barbara Delph 

• JBWD Finance Committee – October 13, 2021, at 9:00 a.m.- President Unger & 

Vice President Floen 

• Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors meeting – October 14, 2021, at 9:30 a.m. 

– Director Reynolds 

FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS –  
 

• Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors meeting – October 28, 2021, at 9:30 a.m. 

– President Unger 

• JBWD Board of Directors Meeting – November 3, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. – All Directors 

• JBWD Finance Committee – November 10, 2021, at 9:00 a.m. – President Unger & 

Vice President Floen 

• JBWD Water Resources & Operations Committee – November 10, 2021, at 10:30 

a.m. – Director Reynolds & Director Doolittle 

• Morongo Basin Pipeline Commission – November 10, 2021, at 2:00 p.m. – Vice 

President Floen 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – 

• Board Member Best Practices Workshop 

CLOSED SESSION – At this time the Board of Directors will adjourn to Close Session for 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 (b)(1) Public Performance Evaluation of the 

General Manager. 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION –  

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION - 

ADJOURNMENT –  

 

. 

 

   

 

 

 

 

Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 2 of 24



INFORMATION 
 

The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. Members of the public wishing to 

attend the meeting that require other reasonable modifications or accommodation to facilitate such attendance should contact 

Beverly Waszak at (760) 366-8438 or bwaszak@jbwd.com as soon as feasible before the meeting to make such request.   

 

Availability of agenda materials:  Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all or a 

majority of the members of the Joshua Basin Water District Board of Directors in connection with a matter subject to discussion 

or consideration at an open meeting of the Board are available online at jbwd.com for public inspection, or in the District’s office, 

61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, CA 92252 (“District Office”).  If such writings are distributed to members of the Board less 

than 72 hours prior to the meeting, they will be available at the reception desk of the District Office and on-line at jbwd.com 

during business hours at the same time as they are distributed to the Board members. 

 

Disability-related accommodations:  The Joshua Basin Water District Board of Directors meeting room is wheelchair accessible.  

If you require any special disability-related accommodations (e.g., access to an amplified sound system, etc.) please contact Ms. 

Waszak at the District Office at (760) 366-8438 during business hours at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting.  This agenda can be obtained in alternative format upon written request to Ms. Waszak in the District Office, at least 

seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 

. 

 

   

Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 3 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 4 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 5 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 6 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 7 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 8 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 9 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 10 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 11 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 12 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 13 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 14 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 15 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 16 of 24



 

 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2021 
 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – President Unger called the meeting to order at 5:40 

p.m. via teleconference. 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM – President Unger asked for a rollcall and the following Directors 

were present; President Unger, Vice President Floen, Director Doolittle, Director Jarlsberg, and Director 

Reynolds are in attendance via teleconference. 

STAFF PRESENT –Mark Ban, General Manager, Sarah Johnson, Director of Administration, Anne 

Roman, Director of Finance, and Jim Corbin, Director of Operations, are in attendance via teleconference. 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT –Jeff Hoskinson, Legal Counsel 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – MSC¹ (Floen/Reynolds) 5/0/0 motion carried to approve the Agenda. 

Ayes:  Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, Reynolds, and Unger   

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT – None 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-1035 – STATE OF EMERGENCY FINDINGS – President Unger asked for a 

synopsis for this subject matter in order for the Board to comment and ask questions.  General Manager 

Ban stated that the revisions to the Brown Act, under the emergency ended in September.  However, this 

will allow the District to continue to attend meetings remotely without having to recognize the normal 

posting procedures so long as the Board finds reason to have the emergency provisions extended.  It will 

occur every 30 days; for the month of October with the first meeting being on October 6, 2021, the Board 

will continue to take the meeting remotely. For the October 20, 2021 the Board meeting will be an 

optional meeting for the Board to attend either virtually or in-person.  Also, this will allow up to six (6) 

attendees from the public and for the first meeting on November 3, 2021 to get back to normal attendance 

and meetings at the District, or if the Board decides to have these meetings continue virtually with this 

Resolution allowing us to make small updates, if the need arises for the District to go back to virtual 

meetings.   One of the main reasons for this is the size and limitation of our Board room and the number 

of people we can have in the Boardroom at this time. 

Jeff Hoskinson, Legal Counsel informed the Board that this is now complying with the statutory 

provision that is bringing what the Executive Order that we have been following for the last year and a 

half.   The Brown Act was updated in September, essentially the same thing as we have been doing but 

being allowed to as long as we make this finding. 

Director Doolittle asked if this means that we would have hybrid meetings meaning in-person and also 

teleconference. 

General Manager Ban responded that it would depend on what the Board’s findings are and right now we 

are covered through the end of this month. At the October 20th meeting, if we don’t find that there is 

reason to continue via teleconference for the month of November for the Board of Directors, then we 

would go back to the regular noticing procedures and attendance. However, if the Board wants to extend 

that, and finds reason to do so, then the Board could decide to have a hybrid or stay fully virtual. Some of 

the language within this Resolution would change depending upon what the Board’s findings are. 

Director Jarlsberg asked how the limit of up to six (6 ) attendees going to be publicized and clarified to 

the public and would there be a possibility of someone standing in the lobby? 

Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 17 of 24



 

 

Jeff Hoskinson, Legal Counsel replied that in terms of notice of the limitations, that is the reason for the 

blurb at the beginning of the Agenda that actually sets forth, before the Agenda begins, it lays out the 

circumstances, along with the default location being online. 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-1035 - MSC¹ (Floen/Reynolds) 5/0/0 motion carried to adopt Resolution No. 21-

1035. 

Ayes:  Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR - MSC¹ (Reynolds/Floen) 5/0/0 motion carried to approve the Consent 

Calendar. 

Ayes:  Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION PLAN – Director Sarah Johnson informed the Board that in June 2021, 

District negotiators and the American Federation of State, County & Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 

representatives began regular Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) negotiations.  On August 19, 2021, 

before negotiations concluded, represented District employees voted to decertify AFSCME, which 

nullified all bargaining that had taken place along with the former MOU. Director Sarah Johnson then 

gave a quick overview of the new Employee Compensation Plan.  A brief Q&A followed with the Board. 

MSC¹ (Floen/Jarlsberg) 5/0/0 motion carried to approve the Employee Compensation Plan. 

Ayes:  Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT (receive for information only) – General Manager Ban stated that he 

received an updated GIS population layer of 2020 to add it to our current districting.  He gave an update 

on Well 14 and that he would be on the “Up Close Show” on Z107.7 on Friday, October 8th at 10:00 a.m.   

• Director Jim Corbin gave a brief update on Well 14. 

DIRECTOR MEETING REPORTS – President Unger and Director Jarlsberg gave a brief report on the 

meetings they attended. 

FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS – President Unger read off the list of the upcoming meetings. 

ADJOURNMENT – MSC¹ (Floen/Doolittle) 5/0/0 motion carried adjourn the Board meeting of October 

6, 2021 at 6:25 p.m. 

Ayes:  Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, Reynolds, and Unger   

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

________________________________________ 

Mark Ban, General Manager & Board Secretary 

Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 18 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 19 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 20 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 21 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 22 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 23 of 24



Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
October 20, 2021  Page 24 of 24




